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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of
FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Frank Metals Recyclers Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then cadad, and notes 10 the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and aceording to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in ccnformity with the
gecounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Compary as at
March 31, 2025, and its Profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
Nows Tor the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Com panies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jucdgrient, were of most significance
in our audit of the tinancial stalements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial stalements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on'these matters.
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE
ON_THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF FRANK METALS
RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 peint (f) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Reguirements” of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FRANK METALS
RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Fhe Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduet of its business, including adherence to company s policies, the
saleguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and  «
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of
internal finaneial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
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of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Jjudgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
O error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaihed is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inlierent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper manasgement override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, prajections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadeqguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, sn adequate internal financial controls systein over
linancial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting weie operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the esseatial components of internal control stated in
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Other Information

I'he Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
mformation comprises the information included in the anaual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thercon, The annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 1aisstated.

When we will read the annual report, ift we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Guvernance for the Staadalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and {air view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
clfectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that g.ve a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsille for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related (o
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to ccase operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements czn arise from fiaud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 1esponsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and sppropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
hugher than for one resulting from crror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
eftectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of "
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw atiention in our auditor’s report o the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence ottained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Compary to cease 1o
continue as a going concern. .

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and conient of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial siatements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achicves fair prasentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatcment in the finsacial statements tht, indiviJually
or in aggregate make it probable that the economic decision of a reasonally knowledgeable
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user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality
and qualitative factor in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statement.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, refated safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
eircumstances, we determine that a matter should not be comm unicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issucd by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessa ry for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Charges in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, we report that: In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during
the year, including sitting fees paid to independent directors, is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and does not exceed the limit
prescribed thereunder.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company did not have any pcndiné, litigations.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

lii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, (o the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of fis nds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, sccurity
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties™, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or inivest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
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Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of

the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(¢)  Based on the such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {i) and
(i1} of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (bj above, contain aay material

misstatement,

V. The company has not declared or paid dividend during the vear,

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated for all relevant
transactions recorded in accounting software throu ghout the financial year. During
the course of performing our procedures we did not notice any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved
by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

FORAVAMS & ASSOCIATES
(Formerly known as A K Varshney & Ca.)

== Nred
(AKSHAY KUMAR WSTIRA)
Pariner

M. No.: 539167

DATE: 30.04.2025

PLACE: NEW DELHI

UDIN: 2553918 1 BMIPHN &)
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTOF EVEN DATE ON
= RS KRRTORIOF EVEN DATE ON

THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF F RANK METALS RECYCLFRS

PRIVATE LIMITED =

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report 6n Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements™ of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particalars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plunt and
Equipment.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and o. the basis
of our examination of the records of the company, the company does not
hold any intangible assets. Consequently, clause (iXa)B) of the order is not
applicable to the company,

(b) In accordance with the phased programme for verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment, certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment were physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds ‘of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and lease agreements are duly executed in the favour lessee) disclosed in the
financial statements are held in the name of company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued
any Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Consequenly, clause (iXd)
of the Order is not applicable to the Cotpany,

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions { Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder, if so, Consequently, clause (i)(e) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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(i1}

(1)

{a)

(b)

The management has conducted physical verification of inventories at
reasonable interval during the year and no material discrepancies (10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory) were noticed on physical
verification of inventories. In our opinion the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not been
sanctioned with any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Consequently, clause (ii)b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has granted loan and advances
in the nature of loan to parties.

{a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The aggregate amount of such loan granted is Rs. 2,085.00 Lakhs and the
balance outstanding at the Balance Sheet date as at 31.03.2025 is Rs, 1,773.36
Lakhs (including interest).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the terms and condition of such
loan is not prejudicial to the interest of the Com pany.,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment of loan
is regular,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there is no amount overdue for
these loans.,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there are no loan or advance in
the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year and las been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing
loans given to the same parties, Consequently, clause (iii) (e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has granted loans
or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii})

specifying any terms or period of repayment. The total amount such loan granted
is Rs. 35.00 Lakhs and the balance outstanding at the Balance Sheet date as at
31.03.2025 is Rs. 38,75 Lakh (including interest), These loans have been
granted to the related party. The total percentage of this loans to the total loan
granted is 1.30%.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of
loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not accepted any deposit
during the year. Consequently, clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of vost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in respect of statutory dues:

(@} The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax. Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax. Custom Duty, Exeise Duty, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues, during the year, with the appropriate
authorities and there are no material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they becauie payable,

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (1) which have not besn
deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

{ix)

examination of the records of the Company, there are no transactions which are not
recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been
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(x)

(xi)

()

()

(€)

(f)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has applied the
term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we repoit that no funds have
been raised on short-term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clausz 3(ix)Xd) of
the Order is not applicalle.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obl igations of its
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act 2013, The Company does not
hold any investment in any joint venture or associates (as defined under the
Companies Act 2013) during the year ended 31 March 2025.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries
companies (as defined under the Companies Act 2013). The Company does not
hold any investment in any joint venture or associates (as defined under the
Companies Act 2013) during the vear ended 31 March 2025,

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of Initial Public
Offer (IPO). Consequently, clause (x)Xa) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, that curing the year the
Company has made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures duriag the year and the requirements of Section 42 and
62 of the Companies Act 2013, have been complied with and the fund raised
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. '

To the best of our knowledge and zccordin 2 to the iafosmation and exple aations
given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditor in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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{xii)

(xiii)

(x1v)

(xv)

{xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)

ic) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle hlower
complaints has been received during the year. Consequently, clause {xi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi

Company. Consequently, clapse {xii) of the Order is not applicable io the Company,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013, and corresponding details have been disclosed in the financial
stalements, as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards,

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company doesn’t have an interna!
audit system and is not required to have an internal audi system, as per provisions of the
Companies Act 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. '

T'he Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Consequently, clause (xvi)(a), (b). (¢) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company,

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial vear,

There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditor during the year. Consequently,
clause (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ths
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and pavment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Dircctors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 1o our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uacertainty exists as ri the duie
of the audit report that the Com pany is not capzble of mecting its liabilitios existing gt
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pariod of one vear from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 1o tha futire
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the dute of (lie audit repart and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurancs il all
liabilities falling due within g period of one year from the balance sheet date, il gai
discharped by the Company as and when they fall due,
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(xx)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not covered under provisions of the section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, Consequently, clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi})  The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of standalone financial
statements of the company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of

said clause under this report,

FORAVAMS & ASSOCIATES
(Formerly known as AK Varshrey & Ca.)

Partner
M. No.: 539167
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PLACE: NEW DELHI
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FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN; U37100DL2021PTC352633
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

As at 31032025 As e 31,03.2024
Purticulirs MNote (% i Lokhs) (¥ in Lukhs)
ASEETS
{1} Mou-current assets
{3} Property, Plant and Equipmesnt 2 1,204 40 117853
(b1 trvestments s subsidiaries, associates and joint venture 3 14,000 10,00
{c}  Financial Asseis
{1} Investmenis El B -
(i} Oher hank balances b . -
(il Dher Mmanciol assels (41 4594 15 211,86
_ td) Deferred Tax Asset 2 —, IS
1.7T12.23 142038
(2} Carrent asseis
(ay Invsntonas g 50019 1,830.27
() Finaacial assets
(i} Investmen 9 - -
(i} Trade recetvaisles 1% 45447 185,15
{iii} Cash anel eash poLivalants 11 iR 590 K]
(v Other bank balances 12 . -
(v) Loans - -
vy Cahier finongial assets 13 | 28545 -1
() (Chher current assels I4 628 02 32044
. 6,998.99 3, I3II.H
TOTAL ASSETS 871122 4,554.67
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1 BQUITy
4a) Share Capiml 5 747,00 £55.00
{b) Osher equity & 4,539,244 256012
5,286.44 311512
(2) LIABILITIES
(&) Mow-carrent linbilitics
{a} Fromncual Hebilitics
Borowings 17 54047 29T
Other finnneinl habilities I8 44.9] -
(b} Dweferrad Tax Liability 205
(9} ‘Tong torm grenisions LR | DIt . .
586.99 730346
(B) Corrent linhilitics o I
. (a} Fmoncial liabilities
(i} Borowings 1% 202.91 557 62
(i) Trade payables kel
Tolal putsizrding duss o micre and small
ETlETprisEs )
Totzl outstanding dues to ather Han miere sl 2.445.14 711
small enverprises
{1ii} Other Financinl linkifities ] | 12632 4278
() Shor werm provigions 22 ST 68 H23
(e) Oxher cwrrent liehilites 13 o IH- 44 1143
T ) T09.09
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES §,711.22 4,554.67

The accompanying potes we integral port of the Finanoal Statements
1 tesms of our reporl of @ven dae

For A ¥ A M S & ASSOCIATES

(Farmerfy kwown as A K, Vﬁrka:l.rd CG.IJ:

Chartered Accountants "
FRM: 2THN

b

Alshay Kamar Nishea
Partner
i, Mo 3 530167

me QE‘E‘HQTG 1BMIPNNT69)
30 APR 2025

For and on behall of the Board of Directors
FRANK METALS RECY CLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

M@E&W

&

Rajesh Gupta Devender Kumar Fater

Dhrector -':!.':.:‘ b Diieciar

DIR-01%94 | 485 OM-OEGTIR0T
Page 1

Shulpa Vevma

Cn’ﬂ.’;nlg Secfrei-ux.tr
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FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U3TIHDLI0ZI PTCIS2633

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025
(Al nmoants in Indian Kupces in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

April*24 - March'25 April'23 - March'24

Basie { Biluted (in Ropes)

The accompanying notes are integral part of the Financial Statements
In termis of our report of even date

For AV AMS & ASSOCIATES

(Farmerdy known as A, K. Farshpey & Co,)

Chartered Accountants - = :

FRN : 004279 _ CA NN
Akshuy Kunfar Mishra - : o)
Pariner , '

M. No. : 539167

uDIN T 3916 FBMIPMA 364

o 0 APR 2025

Particulars Mole
1 Bevenue from opertions 24 19,037 .28 4258 44
1 Other Income 25 286.85 1520
T Total Tueome (1+ 11 ) 10,324.13 4237366
IV EXPENSES
fat  Raw materials consumed 24 18,067 .47 4. 307 88
{t) Purchoses of stock-in-trude 27 = 4242
fed  Changes in closing siock 23 {1,356.75) (37920
fe) Employee benefil expenses it 299,89 ga.17
fel Finance costs i) 167.50 3251
() Depreciation and amaontizelion 3l 153,48 73124
fir) Oiher expenses 32 B3.61 4806
Total Expenses (1Y) 2,397.60 401766
Vo Profit before exeeptionnd item and tax (11 - 1V) 926,53 256,00
VI Exceptivinl item -
VI Profit before mx (VY1) 26,53 256,00
VI Income Tox Expenses 33
fe)  Current las 185,94 4244
&) Taxation for earlier vears 280 -
- e Deferred tax - 1553 2.05
Total tax expense 183.21 44.54
X Profitalter tax (VI1-VIT) 743.32 21140
X Other Comprelensive lncome o - - L
lems that will not be reclyssified to profit or loss
(i} Remeasurement gaindloss on defined benefit plans - -
(i) Fair wilustion of equity instrurients = -
{iii) Inboome tix retating |o these item
X1 Total Comprehedsive lncame for the year (IX#X) a 4332 2146
XI Enrnings per equity share - 34
1131 a2l

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors
FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Y A

Rujesh Gupta Devender Kumar Poter

Direcior CFD Y Direciar
D084 1985 Ceit-CH85 79602
% i Page 1

Vesma
(o Qec-re_!-aﬂa
H-Ne - Fioles




FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: 71N D L2021 PTCIR2633

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

(AN amounts i Indiag Rupees in Lakhs, onless otherwise siated)

April-Munrch 2025 April-Marcelh 2624
A, Cash Flow from Opervating activiries: =
Profit before tix 92653 23600
Adustments for
Depreciation and smortzation expense 133 88 7324
Profit on sgle of imvestments = i
Oilver Income (286.45) {15268
Fimunge expenses 16750 1232
CHher non=cash adjustments {Actuarial gsindios) . -
Ohpernting profit before workdng cupitnl changes L0 J46,56
Actjustotents for
Non-Current/Current financial and ather assaes (1DE.03) CRIR'EY
Tride receivables (30927} (185.15)
Inveniaries (268092 (1L.BI02T)
Trade payahles 235803 234317
Mon-CorrentAC urrant [inancial ood other liobilites'provision 10817 19.64
Cush generated from apeeations 33004 20,22
Drrect tax paid - (105.39) {3326}
.  Net Cash [ram Crpernting Activities... A 233,75 16494
B, Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Furchipsz of property, plant and equipiment {17975} (GO7.87)
Procesds from [nvestment ih ather companies - -
Imvesiment n sudsidiary - ooy
Loans and sdvances given {1,321.25} [203.61)
Crber income received 5822 790
Ftovement in carmarked fixed depogis
Muovement i Other fived deposits with benks : -
Mot cash vsed in lovesting ACHvities ..., 1} o idAmaTsy {813.69)
C, Cash Flow from Fi innneing activities:
Procesds feom issue of shares 1,428 00 50320
MNat Procoeds (Repayment) of borrowings (54221 Th4.39
Finange Cost paid {197.56) {3.54)
Net Cash osed in Finnncing Activities ........... C OHE.13 1,213.75
Net inerense or (ecrense) in cash or cash cquivalents | AFBE0] (510,90} T EET02
Cash & Cash equivalents as ml 15t April 590.81 2399
Cah & Cash equivalentsas wt 315t March 79.9) S00L81
Al Hnrlln. Overdrall - .
Cush & Cushy € uiﬂ:llﬂlla s JIl..HM March s p:r Balnace Shevt BECETS 50081
Motis:
a) Casho o Cosh Egoivalents included in Cash Flow Statement
Particnlirs Asat 31032025 Asowt 31.403,2024
Belances with banks 5] 30 371.20
Cash in hand 186 1961
Tatal T9.91 AnilRI
The accompanying notes are integral part of (e Financial Statements
In terms of our repan of even dole
For AV AMSE & ASSOCIATES Fear and on behalf of the Board of Directors
{Farrerly Rugowi as A K. Marsloey & o) Frank Metals Reevelers Private Liniited

Churtersd Acconmtants

FRN : 004279 .:.I | | | , w @}\“‘W

Aksfuy Kumar h-l-:shﬂ: 3t ] /- Hajesh Gupty Devender Komar Poter
Partner - 2 [¥rector CFO % Direstor
M. Mo, : 530167 DIM-0154 1985 DimM-0BS 19502

e &EMIMEHIFHN’MQI ( g! 3)?;;
oned U APR 2025
Shulba Vewma

-*ILIDS
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FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U3TI000LI02 L PTC3S 633

Moles to fimuncial stotenients for the year epded March 31, 2025
(AN pumoiies in Toilinn Rugecs fn Lakbs, unles ofherwlse stated)

NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Mate 1.
A Reporting Entity

Frank ddemis Recyclers Privare Limited (“the Compamy ™), was meorpemted on June 33, 2021, The Compang's o the Busmess aff manuficionng of
Ferraus and s Fervous inyots from the metal scrap

N Dasis for preparention

The finoncial stitermenis have been prepared en oecrual and going concern basis, The accouwnting pelivies are applied consistently fo afl the pemods
presemted i the finaneiad Statenseintd. Al masets and Hohilifics hove been classified s ewrrent o aon-current as per ihe Company s oormal aperating cucke
anit ather eritgnn a5 sl ot n e Diwgeon 11 of Schedake 11 to the Companies &c1, 2015 Based on the maiure of procucts o the time betwesn
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisastion o cosh mnd ensh equoalents, the Company has-asceriained s operating evele 2512 inontls far
the purpose of cuiiend or nevgurnent clossification of nssets and linbilites

Tha financial statements are presemted 0 1NR, the Tmetiomal currency of the Company, lems inchuded w the fnancal gaemenss of the Company are
e=corded wsmg the currency of the privagy seonamic enveronment mwhizh the Company aperates | ve “lunesianal euireney')

C Statement of complinnce
T fEnancin stmemints have been prepered in accardance with [ ASs nedified under the Convponies { Indign ddesunting Sizndardz) Rales, 2015 a4
aangended From fime 1o time . Upso the venr ended hareh 11, 2023, k= Company prepared its fnameinl statements in scoordance with ihe requirements of
previos GAAPR, winch mchides Standards neified under the Companied (Aceounting Standards) Rules, 2006

¥ Lse of estinentes amid criticnl aceounting jodgmenis
bt preparation of the nancial siatemenis, the Campany makes judgmenis, estimates and azsumptions abowt the carving smounts of nseets and kit
The estimates and (he pssozinted Bswnplions are bsed on hissoricnl experience and other faciors that gre considesed 1o be selevam, Achual pesubty ooy
diftier Cioii ihese estrmaizs

The estimates and e undedying asuompshions are revicwed on e ongainge basis: Revisions ie ncopunting estimnies e necognised i the perind in which

Ihe. cstimades.are revised
Significant judpments and Estimites relating Wtk emvving amounis of assets anc Hobilides include imelul lves of tnigible ond tmianglble psseis,

impairment of tangible assets amd intngibile asses, provisgon lor employee benefits and other provisions, recoverabiliey of deferred fax assers and
cammitments nnd eontingencies.

E  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{I}  Revenue from enntrae! with customers

Company had adopted [nd AS 115 "Revenue from Contrnct With Customers® oo s linsecil year being e Grstvenr of opensiong. Revenue fem
conteact with gusimmers is recogmised when the Compoy satisfizs performance obligsteen by ransleiming promised pods aisd serviess i ilie caslodier.
Petfarmance abligation: are sutisled of o point of time, Performance obligatiens are said 10 be saislied & a polnn of dme when the cmtomer obtaing
comrols ol the assel.

a) Sabe of Gomls

Fesyenue fram the sale of goods i e course of ordinary selivifiss i measured ot the fair value of the consideraiion reoeived ar receivable, net of retums,

finde discawils and volume rebntes Revenog |5 recognised when the significont rigks and rewards of awnershig have been imnsferred oo the buyer,

recavery of fie congideration 15 probable, the associntsd costs and possible retum of goods ean be estimated refinbly, there is oo comimEng efective

comared over, af imaagerial ivotvemen with, she geods, and the smount of revenus can be mensured reliabdy The timing of tmnsfars of visks and rewards

vities depanding on the individual termg of sale, wsunlly in cose of domestic, such transfer ocgurs wher the productis sold oo ex-works; however, for
. experts transfer oceurs upen foading fhe goods anto (e relevan e at the port of seller, Genermlly for such products buyer has no right 1o e

: _ s @}”W
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{iiy Forsign corrency transeetions ol franskition

The finnncial starsments of the Cimpay 18 presenied in THR. which 18 the functional earrency of the Compuny and the pressntation curency fir tie
fimaiscial statements

In preparing the financial snieiments of the Company, transuclons i curencies oiber fhan fhe entity’s functional eurrency nre recarded al tha rates of
exhange pravailing on the date of the tmnssction, A1 the end of each ieporting period. manztary tems densminnbed i foeeign currencies i reiransinted
o e s prévaiiing at the end el the reporiing period Non-monemry issmes thnl s messored in perms of hiscdcal cost 0 9 foneign custency are nal

translased,

Exclhnnge differences arleing an the senfement of monetury (e, ail on retrarskation ol meaeary ieims e pieliidded [0 the staterment of proti and lose
Tar the pzriod

[Hiiy  Property, gplant pml equipmen|

A itern of propesty, plint and squipnient is recogrised as an assai o 1L 1s probable fhat futee coonomie benulits assocized with the tem will flaw 1o the
Compairy and its cost ean be menzured refiobly, This recognition principle 5 appiled 1o the coats incirres! inifially 1o scguire an tem of praperty. plans pod
equipment and also 0 casts incurred sulmequently to add to, replace part of, or serviee it All oiber cepair and mainienance costs, including replar
servicing, are recognissd in the stuement of profit and loss b incurred. When 3 replasament accurs, the camying amount of the replaced piit s de-

receinsed

Progerty, plani and equiprment ane stated at cost, less necunglated depreeinrion and impainment, Cost meludes ol divect cosis-and expenditures meurred 1o
laring the assel o % working eondition und lozation for @5 intended use. Trinl run expenses (nel of veverne) are capimlissd, Borrowing costs during the
period of orsiruetion one odded fo the cost of eligible tmngible sy

Gt o lass arising on disposal of an asset is dotermined e the diffirercs between the sale precepds pnd the camying amaunt of the nssel, wd is

reecanised in the statement off prolicuod lose

(v} Deprectotion and smortization of property, plant and equipment wod intoegilile assers
Dleprecintion is the systemutic allogntion of fhe deprecishls anotnt of an asset over its ydeful K i 15 prowvided an wnzn down value basis over (he
ugellel Lfe o presorbed i Selwdule B of he Companies Act, 2013 wnbess olherwiss specified. Depreciadle nmount Vor thie srssets i the cost of an sz
less its estimaied residual value. Deprocimtion oo adéiton loideductions fom fixed asseis ds provided on jeo rafe basis fromfin s date of
aceuisitionidispoeal, Deprecislion 90 E52s UNder CORSRICTON CoMMEnces only witen the sssets are teatdy for their teaded use

{vi  Fingncial Instruments
Einancint assets und fnnncial fbilities are recopnised when the Company besomies & oy 1o the conteetisnl provisians of the instrument. Financisl

ussefs und Tabilities nee nitinlly measured a1 fair value. Transaction cosis that ars cirectly atiribusable o (he sequisition ar isse of (nancinl assets sid
financinl Habilities rother than noncil sssets asd feancial labilities al fisr valie through profit or Less) are added 1o or dedueied trom the fuir value
imensured 0a mitial recognitics of inncil asser or finangial lability, The fanscion casts directly attribiitable 1o te nequisition of finarial assets and
Finaneind Hinddlities a1 fair valus drough profie and loss are immedintely recopneted 0 the staement of prafitand loss

EfMective interest miethod
The effective intarest method {5 @ metod of colcolating the pnvortized costof a financiol irstrument and of allpcalig [MACITSL INGOMS OF ExpRAEE DVED the
pelavaml period, The effective ienest eale (5 the e that exacily discounts futune cnulh receipis or pavmenis thinugh the expected 1l of the financinl

instromesi, or where appraprinie, 3 shorter penod,
n) Financinl nssets

Finnneinl azsers wl amortsed cost

Financinl nxsels ane sybssguently measured ot pmoniscd cost if thess financiol nssels are held weithin & budiness wodel whose abjective is to helil hese
nssets i geder 1o colieet sontracionl cash figws and the contmeiual terms of the financizl asset give rise ea spesified dates to cash fows that aie sclely
poyments of prengipnl and imerest on (he princpnl dmeuat aasmanding,

Finnncinl assers nessired ot fair vilue

Finangial essets ore mesusured i1 i velue [rogh oier camprehensive incame i Hhese financial assets-are beld within u business nvidel whose chjective
& i hold ihese assets in ardes te ealleer contractinl it ows o 1o 5ed these fnancinl assets and the contruciunl terms of the finnacial assct give rise an

spectlied dates 1o cash flows that are salely payments of principal and fnaevest on the prineipal mount oufstending,
o Financia] 4382t not measured al amortised cost or at fir value theeugh other comarehensive inecme is carries ot (e valoe throagh anl or |aes.
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(vild  levenicrics
Triventarses ane valied af lewer of tost e niel ielizable vslie (except strapiumsts which are valued &0 aet realized vali=) "Cost® comprisess all cast of
purchase, costs of conversion and cdhir coets mewrred o bringing the inventory o he prosent locaton and condition, The el formuln wed s either "fim
i [est qud”, o specific ientiffontion”, of the ‘Tverage com®, as applicable.

{viiil  Provisions
Provisicns are recopnisad in the abues et when e Comnpany bas o prsest obligation (legal or eonsiructiva) 38 o resull of a pogt svenl, which is

expected 1 result inar ourflow of reaturces embixlving econpmic benefits which ean be relinbiy estimnsed. Each proviaion 18 hased an il best canminte
of Ihe ex penditure required 1o seetle the presi ebligation at the halance shest date.

Constrsctive abligation is an ohfigation that derives fiom an enlily's actions where

(8] by an extablisbed pattern of past pructice, published paticies or & sulMiciently specific current mintement, the entity has indicated 1o ather parties that il
will aegept certnin responsibilines, and

th As w result, the entiry has crented & willd eepectntion on the pirt of those other parties thar o will discharge those resprnsibil ties

[} Inconwe axes

Tox expense for 1o year comprises current and defermed tax,

Tl tas currenily puyuble 15 based on taxable prof) for (he year. Toxable profit differs from ner peofit a3 repared i (ke stsespent of prodil and logs
beeaue it excludes items of income or expenss that ate tmxoble or deductible in efber yenrs and it further excludes iems thar ar= never txable of
deductible. The Company®s lobility for curment ti is calculated waing tax cafes and tax bvws ermcted 0 fhe comiry. Applicable Tus mies for calculnting
CUTTRNT year income tax provision & defemad iy inciucle Henlih & Eduestion Cess wikleh hins beap held ba be dedichilile expienss ik per variois Judisial
prancaneements. Acvordingly, provision fe ineeme tox of current year hos been worked aut afier consslerng ihe deductible healih & eduention cess

e during the venr

Deferred fax i3 the iy expectad 19 be payable &0 recovesable on differences beiween ile conplng omonnts of nsse=s and Hobilities i e linansial
slatements and the eomesponding s bases ussd 0 the computation of eeable profit, and is accounted for usimg the badonce sheet labihty melhod
[ehirred tnx [iabilitizs are genernlly tecopnissd for all teadde lempornry differanocs. I controst, defiered tix assens e anly recagnived o the exient fhag
iE1s probebie that future taxable profits will be avaikalale aginst which the tenpornry diffsrences can be utilised.

The earrying amaount of deferved tix geser o reviewed ot the end of Each reponing period and reduced 1o the axent that it & oo langee protiatde tlao
sullicient taxahls profits will be aveitable o allaw sl or port of the agset o be regovered.

Ceeferred tax assets and linbilitiss e messured using subsiengively snacied Tax rtes expecred 1o apply 1o lisable income in the vedrs [ which the
femsparry iferances are expecied to be recavered or settled

Coment and deferved mx are recognised a3 o expense o meone in the statzment of profit and Ioes, except when they celaie i alem credied or debited
edihier in othgr comprehensive incorme ar divectly i equity, i which cose the 1 = nlso recopnissd in other comprebiensive incame or diseetly i1 equity

{x} Cash and Cash Equivalents
sl pnd cash equivalents inclede cash and cheques i lund, bank balances, dennd  deposis with honks, rendiionees iy foingie wod sther sho e

Tighly liepid vestments that are readily comviertibhe to koo omounts of cash and which me subjeet to an insigniticans nak of changes in valoe whare
origmal inaundy i3 theee months ot less

(ui)  Lendes
Company has ndopted Tnd AS 116 “Lenses” Sarting Apeil 01, 2021, with initinl date of opplicstion being &l 01, 2022,

The Company-applicd |nd AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach with a dace of initial application of Agquil 01, 2002 and accoadingly L
eonmiparadive figures hove ot been regiaied. Mordever, there swas no impest of initial application an the balonee of vemived eamings as-of Apedt (31, 2021,

The seeminting pelicy of the Company on adaption of Ind AS 118 s detalzad below ,

The Company as o lessee

Al inceptian of @ contae the Company sssess whether 8 cantract &, or comain a lease, A conlract i, or containg, o ke if contract comveys (s right 10
caiol the wse of an idendified asset farn period of fime inexctnnge for cosdennion

The Compuny recagnizes a Tight of use aseet end & fease [aldlty a1 the leade commencentent dale, The gt of uee assel i inifially m=asured ot cogl,
which comprizes (he initinl nmount of the leese linbility adjugted for any lease pryment mads at or before the commencement dete, plus any initial direot
L8t ineurred aod an estimate of cosis 1o dismantle and remave the usderlying gsaee of 10 restoe e undelying aasen ar e 3ile on which it 15 locted,
lega any lease incentives reeeived

The right of nse asset {3 subzequenty deprecied wsing the ssright-line method from the commisncemen) dole e enrdier of the énd of the uselul life of
the right of use sesed of the cnd of tha lesse tern, The eggimated ucelol lives ofrighl of use fssels ore datenyined on he same basis o thase of propery,
plant and esuipent.

The lenze lnkiliy is dnetinlly mensared ae the present valie of the lease payments that ang nol paid af the commencement date, discoumed ssing the
inferest mig implicit in the lende oc i0 (hm mie enoot be readily determined, the Compmy”s incremanta! bompwing rate. Generally, the Company 1ses its
meremiental Borrowing mie a5 il discouni mbe, The lesse liabiling is measured &l amorised oost using the ellzctive inlerest method

' i e of leases hovings o lease teem of beas ihan oo yedr, (he naseunl of lease gayment is recogmized o3 an expenss on neeral basis,

b 1
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The Compuny as a lessur

When the Company acts ae a lessor, i defermines o lesse inception whether each lense is a fMnance lease or an operating lease. To classify eseh bense, e
Conmngrny makes an overnll sssesement of whether the lease trinsfers substaminlly wll of the sy and vewsrds ingidenml 2 ownesship of the derdying
azset. 10 this 1 ehe case, then the lease is 8 Mnance beases i§ nat, teen it B &0 opemiing lease: As part of s essessment, the Company condiders certain
indicators such a3 whather the lease |s for the major part of the economic Tife of the assat

Rental income from assets held ander operatmg leares o recogsized on sirmglsd lme basis,

[adi]  Iowestmend properties
Property it iz hedd for Tong tenm sental wiglds or for capisal appreciation or hatle, and that 5 sot eccupsed By the Company. i3 classiffed a5 imvesonent
property. Invesiment property bomensured inidinlly sl cosk, meliding rebaied tmnsscion cost aed where applicalde bemowing coss. Subssjuent
expendinge 1 capiialized o the asseE carmying mmount only when i i probate thar future ecancavic benef nssocintsd with the expendire will flaw i
the Company and cost of the fema can be reliably messtred. All oiher repair and mnindenance cost are axpensed when moerred.

Investinent propeily are depretinted ting wiitten down value hases over the igefl itz &5 preseribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act. 2013 undegs
otherwise speciiied.

{ull] Business eombinatini
Acqmsitign of subsidianes nnd businesses are nccounted for using the acquishisin meibed, The considécation tmnalissred ln ench business sombination is

mezpred nl the ngpeegate of the noqumtion dale e values of wssets given, liabiidiss incarred by e Graap e the farmer owners of the acquitee and
eqsity Inberests lsswad by the Graup in exchange for condral ol the acquires

Goodwill ariging on sequisibion & recoghised i an ageel and measuied al coar, belng the excess of the consideration transterred in the buginess
combrimation over the Greup's overest in the net fair value of the idennifisble asses soquired. Siohilitics assumed and contingent labilities rscogrised.
White tha fair value of the identifable assets and lizbilities exesed the cost of Ecqudisition, afler re-ossessing tie fiir volues of fhe pat asssis and contingen|
lintilsties, the excess is recopnised as copiinl reserve on consolidation

) I ot OF
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Tompairment of lrancinl asseis
Logs allovamee for expecied credit losses is recogmissd for financinl sssels messured 00 amarbssd cost and Fair valie (mugh odker camprehense

ineome

Loss allawnisoe eiml to the (iffine expested credil losses i3 recognised if the eredit righ on the fnancial ingiromenis has significanty merssed sinee
inifial tevousiieon, For finmmetal instruments whose dradie sisk has not signifcuntly mereased sinee. inital recognition, loss ilewance equnl o twiclve

mariths expected eredil lones is recogimised

Derecogaition of Moancial assees

Tl Compurry dereeognises o financial ass=t only shen the contreetunl fighis 10 the cash Nows from the assst expire, of It mngfer the fnonoial msset and
substmtiadly all rigks ond rewards of gwnerghip of fhe assz! io anather entity. 17 il Compuny neither Imisfers no retaing substanzsially 4l the risks and
rewnrds of cwrmrslrip and continues 1o esntrol the wansfered mser, the Company recogilses (8 retiined interest in the asets and an ssocinted Habdite
for nuvounts it may have fo pay. [F the Company retains sabistantinlly ail ke visks and rewnrds of owsership of a trangfisrad fimneial asess, the Company
continues o recopnise the fnnncial assel and el recognises 0 callnteralised borrowhig of the procesds received

b} Finuninl liabilities amd equity imstroments

Classalientimi s debi or equite
Finnnctal liskilitics and equity instaments issued by the Company are classified peearding tothe substance of the consachml armnpemens eiiered 0o

il ftee definilions of o financial liakdliey and an equity instrumand,

Fapuity smstrumeiity

Al ety imstranent i pay cantraed Hint ovidences o residunl interest in e asse of the Campany afler deducting alf of its Hobifities. Bqudy inalruments
are recorded &t ihe proceeds received, het of direet isspe coks

Fingueinl Linbilitics
Trade and ather payaliles wee nitinlly messueed a1 fiir valug, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently nbeisured st amartised cast, wmang the effective

interest raig el hod

Intesest-bearims baink lanis aisd ovardeils pre iitially measored 2 i valoe and are subsequenty messared ot mnanised cost uslng the effuctive mnsest
tane e

Degecopwition of nanelsl lHabilities
The Company derecogmises Ninancinl linbilities whien, snd anly wisr, the Compony's obligations are disclsnged, cancelled or they expre

) Derivative Miadcial instrrments

Tlee Comipsny udes certnin derivative financlal insinements, wch s feevard carensy eontracts, 1o hedge (19 fhrelm curreney risks Such derivative
finmneznl ingteureends are imially recopnised ar fhir valoe om te dite on which o denvatove contreet 15 cntered tio med ane subssquently resmeasured 1o
their fair value. The e values for forwond corensy conisscis are mirked 10 markes st the end of each reporing period, Deplvitives nrs carried s
finnnelal assets when the fir value s positive and as financiol Hobifizies when the fair value 5 negative

i) Employes henefits.

Defeid eantribation plans

Paymeits 1o delined eonteiution plons are charped 05 an expenie s they. Gl due Prymesits mode to stabe mompged retirement benefls schemes sre deali
with a5 payeisents fo delingd comribution schemes, whees il Company's obfigations under the schemes we equivalem io these anting in s delined
cantributian retirement henefit sehsane

Dofined beneft plins
Foi defined benefil retirement schemes, the cost of providing berefis s détermined using the Prajected Unit Credd Methad, with scimrisl valusiion

being easried e af each halince sheet dale. Re-msaranent guing and losses of e el defined beaefin linbiliny ¢ (asser) are recognissd immedintely in
Cher Comprefiensive [ncome. The service east, fel ilenst on the nel delined benelit linbility | (asset) is tenied a5 & net expense wilhln enmployinent

(=1L H

Pust servive ol 18 eeognised as an expense, when the plon amesbioen) g0 corfaibment ocours, or when any relzied Tesiruciuring £os or reomROLHON

beiwfits are recogiised, whichever is earlier.
The metirement benefil elligntion receqmdsed in the balonce sheet represents the present vilve of the defined-benefi obligation, as. reduced by e Tair

—===._ Vulue plan psseis
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FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U3T100DL2021PTC382633
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in Lalkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 3: Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 | Asat 31.03.2024
Investments in Equity Instruments
Unquoted - At Cost
Investment in Subsidiary Company
100000 Nos. Equity Shares of 10 Rs each in M/s Eligo Business & 10,00 10.00
Adviosry Pvi Lid
10.00 10.00
Aggreegate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 10.00 10.00
10.00 10.00

Total

Mote - 4: Investmentis

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Non Trade Investment (Held at Fair value through other comprehensive income)

Investment in Equity Shares {Quoted):

Total

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Agoregate amount of unquoted investments

Total

Note - 5: Other bank balances

Particulars
Other fixed deposits with bank
Earmarked Fixed Deposits- Margin Money against
borrowing/Guarantees
-Deposits with original maturity more than 12 months

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Total

N &




Note - 6: Other financial assets

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 6.20 5.75
Loans & Advance 488.15 226.11
Total 494,35 231.86

Note - 7: Deferred tax Asset / (Liability)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Taxable temporary differences:
Financial instruments

Deductible temporary differences:

Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets 5.31 (2.11)
Retirement benefit liability 0.22 0.06
Financial instruments - -
5.53 (2.05)
Total 5.53 (2.05)

Deferred taxes recognized in P/L & Other equity

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Movement in Deferred taxes (YoY) 3.48 (2.05)

Recognized in P/L 5.53 (2.05)

Recognized in other equity - -
5.53 (2.05)

MNote - §: Inventories

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

(As prepared, valued and certified by Management)
(At cost or net realisable value, which ever is lower)

Closing Stock 4.511.19 579.21
Total 4,511.19 579.21
Note - 9: Investment

As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2024

Particulars

Non Trade Investment (Quoted) held at Fair value through profit and loss
Invesiment in Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each (Fully Paid Up)

Total

a}/‘“\u




Note - 10: Trade Receivable

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

securad, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Droubtful

494.42

185.15

Total

494.42

185.15

# There are no provisions for expected credit losses

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Undisputed trade receivable - considered good

Less than six months
6 months - | year
-2 vears

2-3 vears

Maore than 3 years

473.24
2117

[B5.15

Total

494.42

185.15

Undisputed trade receivable - considered doubtful
Less than six months

& months - 1 year

[-2 years

2-3 years

Mare than 3 years

|Tﬂtu|

# There are no disputed trade receivables

Note - 11: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Balances with hanks
- in Current accounts
Cash in hand

61,30
18.61

571.20
19.61

Total

79.91

590.81

Note - 12: Other bank balances

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

Asat 31.03.2024

Fixed deposits with bank

-Deposits with original maturity less than 12 months

Total

PNy




Note = 13; Other financial assets

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2024
Interest Accrued on loan 26.24 7.61
Loans (Unsecured, considered good) 1,259.21 -
Security Deposits (Unsecured, considered good) - -
Taotal 1,285.45 7.61
Note - 14: Other current assets

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 | Asat 31.03.2024
Advance to Suppliers 31.71 215.73
Advances to Employees 1.29 0.20
Balance With Revenue Authorities 593.01 303.25
Prepaid Expenses 2.0 1.26
Other assets

Total 628.02 520.44

@P’
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FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIM: U3TIHDLEOZ I PTCIE2A33

Mates 1o finnncial stntements Tar the yeur ended Mareh 51, 223
(AN amsunts in Indian Repees in Lakbs, unless oterywse st )

[ Particulars As at 31.03,2025 | Asat 31.03.2024
15 [Share Capital
Authorized Share Capitil
Exquity shares of Ry, 10 each. 80,00,000 {hacch 31, 2024 50,04, (005 Ao 2 G, (e
WY 0. Ol
lsswed, subseribed & paid up Share Capital
Eruaty shores of Rs 10 eoch: %4 70,0060 {Mareh 31, 2024: 35 50,0007 747.00 55500
| 747,00 55500
a. Reconcilkation of the shares autstnnding ot the bepinning and at the end of the reparting peried
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As ab Mareh 31, 2024
Number Aot Number Amount
Shares of e, 10 each fully paid
At e beginning of the year 5.550,000 35,300 DRk (AR L] 11,100,000
Fresh shares issved dorning the year 1,820,000 19, 200,00 R ai] 44,400 000
Chutstinadling st the end of the year T AT 000 Tib, OO0 D 5550000 55, 50000

b Termxrights attached in shares

The compsny lies only ane clnss of equity shures hiving i pur value of Ba 10 per share Esch iders of equity shores s entinded o one voie per shore

In the eveni of ligwidston, the equity shareholders are eligible 1o receve the remaiming ssel of e company afler distribution of all preferential
amoun 0 proportion to their shares

. Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares in the company

Mame of Shore Holder As gt March 31, 2025 Azt March 31, 2024
Mo, of Shores ¥ Holiling M, o Shares % Holding
Hajesh Oupts 1,054,000 14,11% 1,054 00 19.18%
Nupur Resyelers Limited B, 360,000 85,145 A 440 000 B0.52%
| Toisl TATO000 9925 5,404,000 1000
¢. Details of Promoter's Shareholding
Mame af Share Holder Az at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Mo of Shares % Helding Mo of Shares W Haolding
Enuity shares of Hs, 10 cach fully poid-up
Rajesh Gupda I, lr5d (00 14.11% | 54 000 189914
Mupur Gupts 56,000 0.75% 36,000 .01 %
Mispair Reeyeler Lamitad 6,360,000 BE 145 4. 440,004 0
Taial T AT 100, 00%, S50, DM} | O T
“a change during (he yeur
Rapesh Giptn ] <73 %0%
Rupur Gupls -0.26% 4040
Mupur Beeyckers Limied 5148 B0.00%
Total . [ - 1).{M%%
BS Mote 15
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FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U3T100D0.2021 PTCI82633

Motes in financial statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2023
(AT wmounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 16: Other equity

Orher
eserve and Surplus Security Preminm Comprehensive
Pariiculars Acgcount Warranl Ineame Grand Total
" Investment
Retained Earnings vesnluation festrve

Drpening Balance as a1 01.04.2022 {3.74} - - {3.74)
Add: Profit for the year (0 50 (0B}
Add: Fair valuation of equity [nel of defierred tuxes) - *
AddiLess Transfer o retwined eamings - - -
Less: Bonu share issued during the year - -
Add: Remeasurernent gainf{loss) {net of deferred tax) - =
Closing balanee as at 31.03,2023 4.54) - - 4.54)
Add: Profit Tor the year 21148 - 21146
{Add: Fair valuation of equity (net of deferred faxes) - =
AddLess: Transfer to retained eamings - 21,3535.20 - 235320
Less: Bonus share issued during the yens =
|Add: Remensurement gaindloss) (net of deferred tax) - -
Closing balance as nt 31.03.2024 206,92 2,353.20 - 2.560.12
Add: Profit for e year 74332 - 743,32
Add: Fair valiation of equity (net of deferred 1a3eg) = -
AddLess: Transfer (o retzined exrnings - LISZ.00 B400 - 1,236.00
Less: Bonus share issued during the yenr -

Adek: Remessurament gam/{oss) net of deferred 1nx) a B
Closing balanee 18 st 31.03,2025 950,24 350520 54,00 - 4,539.44

Miure and purpose ol ether equity

! Retnined Enroings
Retained Earnings is u Irec reserves that is svailahle for disiribution of dividends

I Becurily premiom acconni
. Secirity premium account is created from issue of shores 4l 4 firice hi

=)y,

gher thin face vilue of shares. The sccount can be wlilized for varios purposes as per Companies Act, 2013,

%a;y\ .

Page 1




FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

O 17D T FICIEIA3

Nubes 1o financial siatements for the year ended March 31, 1025
(Al amounts m Indion Ropees bn Lok, ooless nihersise statml ]

ity alinre capibal (% in Lokt
Pariiuter Amoen:
Talnnie as sl April 81, 3027 (e
Balanie &8 51 Mardh 31, 2023 LA RN
Sheees imied u..lEk 1hi2 v 258,01
|Enlamre as nn March 51, 2024 SRS.00
Shares issued during the year 1uLik
| Balance as a1 March 31, 3628 T47.00

Reserve amd Surplus Security Premium
Particulors Account Warrant Grand Total

Retained Exrnirgs

Chpeming Binksnds @ i 01,114,227 i5.74) [3.741
Addr Predit foe the year [t 50Y (0503
Add: Fair vatuation of equeity (et of defermd faves) -
AddAMees: Tramsfer to retninsd ehnmings -
Less Bonus share msised during this ves
Adel: Rewmezsurement paisd{loss) {oei of deferned tan} - -
Clnging balsnee na ot 31053023 [4.54) {4543
Add: Profin for e year 2146 T11aa
Add Fasr valsation of equity (met ol defermed nxes) -
Ad Less Tranider i retimed eomengs 1.355.20 235100
Less Banus shase issusd during the year . :
Adid: It ganiflss]) [net of deferred tax) = 5
Cloging holance as af 3LO3I074 106,51 135310 L 860,12
Add: Prafir for the yeor 32 T332
Add Fair valustion of equsty fnel o defered myes) -
AddfLess! Transbes 1o reétmined earmnes L1500 Ha 1, iS00
Lids Bonus shere issued dunmp the year = &
|Add Reme gair{loss) (eer of delenvl th) - -
| Chising balnmce s st 31,03.2025 BS54 3,5m5.20 L] 4,455,484

The scocompamying nofes s imegml pan of the Financial Suoments
Fn tewmg of o pegant ol esien duig

Far AV AMS & ASSOCIATES 3

{Foraeely huone i A K. Vet dEGRE

Chartered Accsuntants R o

Rajmh Gupin
Direscn
DES-L 1941985

M, Ma. z 33007

mmmz"mr n_ﬂ...wn_.Hm-.._‘m_I mﬂp.z_.#mn_ ]
=370 APR 2025

Far and en behnlf of the Bonrd of Directors
FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

=L

Dipyenher Bpmar Pater

CEOQ 9, et
TTA-NEETMHD

exma

wmﬂ&d&ﬁ
M:-No - Flolos
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FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U3T100DL2021PTC382633

Nofes to linancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 17: Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As ai 31.03.2024

Term Loans
Secured
- From Banks*

LUnsecured
- From Others**

11.86

32801

1619

T11.78

Total

540.47

727.97

* Lioan constitutes Car Loan taken from ICICI Bank Ltd in July 2023, bearing Interest rate @ 8.95%. repayable in 60 EMIs & Tractor Loan

taken from UBL in July 2023, bearing Interest rate @ 11.30%, repayable in 60 EMIs.
** Unsecured Loan taken from various corporates carrying interest rate of 12% to 14%.

Mote - 18: Other financial labilities

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2024
Security deposit received 44.9] =
Total 44.91 -

Mote - 18A: Long term provision

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As ar 31.03.2024

Provisions for Gratuity

L6l

0.34

Total

1.6l

.34

Note - 19: Borrowings

Particulars

As al 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Unsecured

Repayahble on demanid
(u) From Other Parties
Inter Corporate Deposit (Refer Mote (o))

{B) From Related Parties
Loan from related parties (Refer Note (b))

Current maturities of Long term borrowings
Secured

Bank Loan (Refer Note 17)

Ungecured
Other Loans (Refer Note 17)

431

[08.60

137.00

391

416.71

Taotal

202.91

357.62

Mote (a): Unsecured Loan taken from various corporates carrying interest rale of 8% to 14%.
Note (b): Unseeured Loan taken from directors are non interest bearing and from various other related party carrying interest rate of 8% - 16%.

PN
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Note - 20: Trade Pavables

Asat 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Particulars

Total Qutstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises** - -
Total Outstanding dues other than Micre and Small Enterpriscs 2,445.14 77.11
Total 244514 7711

** There are certain vendors who have cenfirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2000, Disclosures relating to dues of Micro and Small enterprises under section 22 of *The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006, are given below:

Principal amount und Interest dus thereon remaining unpaid w any supplier

the amount of Inerest paid by the buyver in terms of section 16 of the Micra, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made 1o
the supplier beyond the appointed day

The amount of interest due and pavable for the vear of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but bevond the appointed day during the year) but without ndding the interest
specifled uniber Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Devetopment Act. 2006

The amaunt of interest accrued and remuining unpaid during the accounting vear.

The amount of lurther interest remeining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until
such date when the interest duss above are actually pald to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as o deductible expendinre under section 23 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2004,

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule®

Particulars

As at 21.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Due 1o MSME
Less than one year

1-2 years

2-3 yewrs
More than 3 years

Tl

Other

Liss tham one year
1-2 yanrs
23 yiars

More than 3 vears

244514

T

Tutal

244514

7711

* There are no disputed dues for trade payable




Mote - 21 Other financial liabilitics

Farticulars

As ar 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Interest accruad but not due

12.62

42.78

Tuotal

12.62

42.78

MNote = 22: Short term provision

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Particulars

Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance tax) 92.68 923

Provision for employeze benefits - -
92.68 9.23

Total

Mote - 23: Other corrent lishilities

As at 31.03.2024

Particulars As at 31.03.2025

Otlrers

Audit fee payable .68 o

Salary payables 21.14 1143

LExpenses Pavables I.98 0.26

Other payables 39.66 1.30

Statutory dues [B.56 728

Advance from customers - Contract Liability 242 1.50
S4.44 22,45

Total

y\u
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FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U37T100DL2O2ZIPTCI82633

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indinn Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 24: Revenue from operations

Particulars April"24 - March'25 April'23 - March'24

Sales of Praducts 10,037.28 4,235.02

Other Sales - 23.44
10,037.28 4,258.46

Mote = 25: Other Ineome

Particulars

April’24 - March'25

April'23 - March’24

[nterest income on financial assels carrfed at amortized cast 270,00 1517

Comrnission lncome 1380

Profit from Salz of FA 2.03 .

Other misc, income .02 .03
286,85 15.20

Mote - 26: Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars April'24 - March'25 April'23 - Mareh'24
Cipening Stock [,251.06 .
Add: Purchase of raw material with processing Expense 11,391.64 5,558.92
Less: Clasing Stock (2,575.123) (1,251.06)
10.067.47 4,307.86

Mote - 27: Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars

April'24 - March'25

April'23 - March'24

Impart Purchase (Ferrous and Non-Ferrous Metal)
Domestic Purchases
Other Purchase

4241

42.42

Note - 28; Changes in Inventories

April'23 - March'24

Particulars April'24 - March'15

Opening Steck in Findshed Goods 579:21 =

Less: Closing Stwek in Finished Goods {1,935.94) (579.21)
(1. 356.75) {579.21)

Mote - 29: Employvee benefit expenses

April'23 - March'24

Particulars April'24 - March'25
Salary and wages 287,11 al.12
ES] Expense .07 -
Labour LWF 0,19 -
PF Expense 228 -
Grauity Expenze 1.27 -
Staff Welfare Expenses 797 1.03
200,89 092.17
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Mote - 30: Finance costs

April'23 - March'24

Particulars April'24 - March'25

Interest Expense 16538 3247

Bank Charges 1.92 0.05
167.50 32.52

Note - 31: Depreciation and amortization

Particulars

April'24 - March'25

April'23 - March'24

Depreciation on Property, plant & equipment

153,88

73.24

153.88

73.24

Mote - 32: Other expenses

April'23 - March'24

Particulars April'24 - March'25
Commsston Expenses 4,79 0,51
Freight Outward 21.30 4.04
Weighment Charges (.20 0.7
Website Charges 0.22 0.0%8
Traveling expenses 0.835 0.33
Loading & Unloading Expenses - 0.45
Certification and Licensing Fees 030 .79
DG Rent Expense - .43
Conveyance Expenses .61 .33
Consumables 640 8.03
Power and fuel - 11.54
Security Expenses 7.73 7.89
[nsurance Expenses 0.63 Q.13
[nterest and Penalty .02 =
Legal & Professional Fees 2.93 371
R0OC Expanse .64
Miscellanzous Expenses G4 4.91
Pollution charges 0.24 0.08
Job Wark 3.98
Postage charges {.06 -
Director Sitting Fees .45
Peyment to Auditors# .75 0.73
Printing & Stationary (.20 0.13
Repair & Maintenance- office 517 .96
65.61 48.66




Note = 33: Income Tax Expenses

Particalars

April'24 - March'25

April'23 - March"24

Current eax |£5.94 42 49

Taxation for earlier years 2.80 -

Deferred max (5.53) 2.05
183.21 #41.54

A reconciliation of the ineome tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit before income

taxes is summearized below:

April'24 - March'25

April'23 - March'24

Particulars

Profit before income taxes {A) 926.53 256.00
Tax Rate (B)- 1 7.160% 1 7.160%
Tax Expense at Statutory tax rates { A*B) [38.99 43.95
Adjustments:

Add: Permanent difference on account of disallowance of CSR expenses - =
Less: Taxation for earlier years . "
Add: Other adjustment 24,232 0.61
Income tax expense 183.21 44.54
Tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 183.21 44.54

Mote 34: Earning Per Share

(A} Reconciliation OF Basic And Diluted Shares Used In Computing Earning Per Share

April'24 - March'25

April'23 - March'24

Particulars
Basic earnings per equity share - weighted average number of equity shares 10,000 10,000
putstanding (Nos) - Original number of equity shares . '
Add: Impaet of shares issued during the year
Right Issue shares issued on [0.11.2021 1,100,000 1,100,000
Fresh Issue of shares on 16.03.2024 4,440,000 [0, 630
Fresh Issue of shares on 19.09.2024# 1,020.493 -
Basic earnings per equity share - weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding (Nos) - Closing 6,510,493 104,630
Add{(Less): Effect of dilutive shares (Maos)
Diluted earnings per equity share - weighted average number of equity shares -
loutstanding (Nos) 6,570,493 1,504,630
# Total number of Tresh issue of share is 19.20,000 which has been adjusted for issuance date for EPS cafculation purposes
(B) Computation of Basic and diluted earning per share
Particulars
Basic and diluted earning per share
Profit after tax 74332 21146
[1.3] 16.21

Basic EPS {In Rs.)/ Diluted EPS {In Rs:}

W




FRANK METALS RECY CLERN FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U371 00DELI0T] FTCAR2E3Y

Motes 16 fnancial datements for the yesr endid Maoreh 31, 2025
(Al amoumis b Indinn Rapees in Laklis, anless ocherwise atned)

Nate 35 Enployes bemefic Plan
{A) Defined benefil Plan

The ihefimed beacfic plan ogernted by the Company (5 8 befa)
Reetiring geatuity

The Company hag an ghligation. \ownrds graduiry, a defined bensfif nesirement plan covenng eligilde emplopess. The plan provides for o luesp-sum paymend (o vesied employess ol moiremesd, death
while m ermplivy TR af g 1l il 3 edjiivaleny. g 26 dpyvs salory payabie T ench eonapleed year of serviee. Vemnng occurs upon compldeton of five venrs of servioe

The Compam dois nol make ony costrshitiont o gritingy fuesds aod ihe olan i@ unfunded The Company accoarnn Bar e Vinbildy T gradusly beellis payable i (he faune bosed on an seeuagl
vakaine

The definee] beoelit plany expase the Compnny s 5 mimber of netoaris] rishs o below:

[n) Dideress rigks A decresis in ihe bond wnéeeal sabe will inenease the. plan linhikiy

b} Ealary riskt The present salue of 1he defined hesefit pion hahifity o ealculaled by refenene o the fubore salanes of plan patiopants. As soch, an ssmmi s ihe walwry ol the plian e il
increase ihe plan's Inbilay

I} Lumgevity riski The prosant valie of the defied beneiit plan llabiliey = coleulatied by refewmer i the best mgimate of the nsanalily af plas pamepams An increase s the ife expecaney of the
plan pormaipant will moreese iha plan's labidby

The Follewing tuble sets el the amownts recognased in the Mnorcinl sisiements i respect of rediring gmtoity plen:

(1} Change in Definel Benell Chligation (TB0) during the yeor

(% im Luakhs)

Fartienlars

Arar 31,05 TS

Awal JLELHITY

Pregain vibue ol D0 o ihe begeming of ihe year

ria

[Fast Servive Cost

L]

Curpent service eoxi

[

Iimiormnl ciosl

0.0

Antmarial less ansing (lom changss in fGnaecial

Athzrinl gt atiting Irom changes i sxperiense adjsshiers

e

ai1n

Denefits paid

.J-'rrmlll wibwe of [HECk a1 ihe eod ol il yenr

.61

e

L] Chaningge b fiie wnloe ol plani asdets durimg o yine

Farticulars

Agoal 51052005

As sl HLDRIN4

Fair value of plan oss=ty al the beyinmmg of the yesr

|FABREEL iEpme

Empioyer contnkndions

Benglin paid

le.ir'\:!.u:ul','.lh amsets ol the end afthe year

(i} Aanouiniy receguised in the Balnnce Sheet

[Partiutary

As it 3RS

Aokl 31,09, M0124

Present value of DBO m ihe end of ihe year

|.B

03

Fair value of plan assets gt the end of the year

Wl Linhilily rocogogsed in lhe Ealaoss Sheet

(]

@34

(ivp Components of coplayer expiense

Particmlars

Aman 3032025

Aok 31082004

Cirrretnl 1orvioe cosl

0

P Spresee Conl

nas

Inlére] s

(Expense recognited i Statement of Profic ) sod Less

I3+

(v Qileer comprebensive | illmlntilﬂllll

Tariiculars

A mi 31INAR

s ml 30T

Ackignal 1iss aivsiig froen cnanaes i financid puegiiang

Artaprmal loss anmng frum chanyes in rlglnmhlt RSZLIMp o

Aciwinial logs arigeng from ehanust in expenence adjusmens

uﬁnluufmumu ipengnimed o odker ponprelicnsive incoue

L) Amanmii iced in odber comprehensive income al period and

Farticulars

As ol 31002022

A a1 3LBETN24

Amssunl egeagnized in CCT anbaginming al'the paniesd

add: Rerapsurements rec d i oer cam] e LT

{vii) Mirtwre od extesi af investmeni aleiails of the plan niscs

Parliculors

Al LR IOZE

Ay ot 31033014

Suie ond Ceniral Seeuriics




FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LINITEDR

CIN: U3THODLINIPTCIEI603

Mites tn fnancinl statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al piounts in Iulian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mnte - 36 Seament Reporting

The Company {3 engaged Primsarily in business of monufacturing of Aluminium ind other metal Ingots fom the sermp Condidenitg the nnture of Company's
business and operations, 83 well as based on review of opernling resulis by the chiel operating desision maker f0 muke decivon about resoures allocation and
petformunce measutemenl, there ure no reportable segmenis in the stondadone finoncinl stolements, o aceardanse with the requirement of Ind AS 108 - *Cperating

Sepments”

Mote - 37; Contingent Linlilites and commitaent

(i} Company hos teceived o demand order for AY 202425 fram the Incpne Tox Deportment under sechen 1434 18] for an amountof Ra-44,10,380 The demand
primnnly. pertning to et providing (he benefit of the concessional maies of s preszribed i Secton 113BAB which is opied by the company while Tiling the
incame tax requm, while procsssing of income fax retom e setion 143010 by Central processing eenier, Income Tox Deponment Company has filled an
appeal naninst the arder with the CITLA ) on G503 2025 tnd 15 eonfident of having the favorable decision on the same Tl the appen! s dispesed off, the amount
has been disclosed as & contingent liokility

Mote « 38: Srntement of Relntegd Porty Diselnsure

() Lise of relaned parties and cefnted party relationshin

Related party relationship Same of the related party
Key Manprement Personal (KAL) [Lajesh Ciapild
[l
Devender Kumar Peter
i Divector)
Gaurny Cupn
Salisuliary Eligo Busineis & Advisery #u L
Hilding Compiny Fupur Recyclers Limiesd
Relatives of KM M Gipita
Entitics. in which KMP ¢ Relatives of KMP can exercise significnnt FiR Himely Investment Privaie Limited

InMuence
Bilack Tiger Adviingy Pvi Lid

Mupur Extrugion Privile Limited

Nupur]n.frnn:d Pvr Lid
R Recyelers Pvi Lid
Mupur betnks { Enpesh Gupa HUF)

Liala Finnmsiml Serveces Lantiied




Donds

Specasd deposay

Frsterur mansped Fols

Il Assnsprians

Pariacalirs A nn 31032005 Am i JLA 2024
Degeaunt Raie o 6PN T15%
Fﬁmnrmtmnﬂ ' Campensation izvels 10 e 100S
Eﬂmuﬂln‘um on Mlan Assezs W wWa
(inp Senmirivity Anabyin

Partigulirs Agoal 31035 2008 Agal ILOAINZA

Hane Laghilisy (3] N1
Encrease Disoooed Baie hyﬂ-ﬁi [l ooy
Dbclahe].mwmuﬂl.mh? L8 [ XIE] noi
lisgredss Salary Inflmon by 0 3% [ EIE] (L]
Decrease Salary kaflibon by 0 4% [ gay R ETY]




(b} Belared party transactions and bolances
Matnro of Tramsaclion Iy Monogemeni | Helablves af KMP Direciers Entities In whick | Taeal
Fersanmel (1CMI} AP { Relatives o
KM can exercise
algnilican
Inflisenee
Interest on Lonm Paid
1 March, 2033 - = - 14 BE 14.85
1 March, 3024 - . . i3 .03
31 Maniv 2033 = - - i v} e dia]
Interest Reeeived
31 Murch, 3025 - - - ATh 475
1 March, 2004 - . 547 47
AT March, 2003 - . - 145 1,45
Borrawing Kepavnseng
11 hdmreh, 035 - - BO5.00 £03.00
0 Morehs, 3024 3450 370 15,00 I[85, 16 TM A6
31 Mnreh, 2023 - - Jod 3X03F 1313
linrrowing Talen
31 Mlarch, M123 = " s TEMOR Taa00
0 Mlaieh, 2024 - - = LRI 16 183 16
30 March, 2023 3500 - - 310,33 15533
Latiin & Advances Given
1 Wlarch, 3023 - - - 3300 J5.00
31 March, 2024 - - - [EIT] [CINY ]
31 Mlarch, 2023 - . - R RE] 01 A%
Regoyment of Loan & Advanees
A1 Mareh, 2025 - - . 134,11 134.1)
A1 March, 2029 . i - 0750 §1.50
31 Mnrch, 2033 . ] . 15613 15113
Frash whnres hssod
31 Murch, 21235 - - ' 12,00 19260
31 Mareh, 2034 - - . dg.00 £} 13
a7 Wlanrch, 3023 E - - . -
Shnre Wirrrnal
31 March, 2025 84100 - . . 4,000
31 Marcli, 2024 - - - - -
Purchmse From Hokding I:.‘u.mpnﬂ,
A1 Mok, 2025 - . - 06407 T 64,07
Bl Mwrch, 2034 . . - 28041 IR0
Sakes t Hshling Compooy
A1 Mach, 3025 - - - 16014 ([N E
31 Minrch, 3523 - - . - -
Purclase
31 March, 2025 H = - 1,03 45 Li21as
31 March, 2024 - - . 6, 13810 B 138 10
1 Wlarch, 3023 - - . . .
Sales
11 Bdasel, 2025 - - - 244 14 -2, 14
31 Maich, 2024 . - - LRIFRL 10
11 lareh, 3023 - . . .




Balpnee Outstonding nid ibe end of e year

Mutere of Tramiction ey Manopement | Relntives of KA Direztmrs Entifies in wiscl Togal

Peraumned (KMIY KME [ Holntives of]

KAP can exereig
significant

Kemunerniing Payable
31 March, 3025 * = - -
3| Adarch, 2034 - - - -
2| Bdnrch, 2023 . . ¥ = 3

Unsecured Loan
31 March, 2025 - - .
30 blarch, 2024 - - H
31 March, HI23 J5s .70 1500 s 5030

Laan & Advance
31 March, 3023 . . - 2700 17,00

31 Mmch, 2024 . . . 121 136,11
31 Mmich, 2023 . . * by X250

Inturest Payalde
31 Murch, 2005 . N "
31 March, 2024 - - =
31 March 3023 . . - - .

literest Rocelvable
2 | March, 2024 - - - 173 Lb75
3] March, 2024 B - - 747 74T
31 Murch, 2033 - - - G20 10

Trade Receivable
31 blarch, 3025 - - = 15474 T

31 Marely, 2024 = - E 2405 M0
31 March. 2033 - - - .

Adlvsmes n Seppllor
11 tdnrch, 20325 - - =
31 hdnrch, 2034 - - = H1TE
11 hMarch, 2033 . . -

T

Trade Payahle
21 March, 2025 = * - LA45 14a
31 Warch. 2024 - - = -

3| Marcly, 2023 - - -

144515

Mate - ¥ Capital management

The Compnny’s capital management objuctive is 1o masimise the (ol sharchalder retuwrn by optimising cost of capim] through Mexible sopial struciure that
Bpppors growth

The Company cetenmines the amount of capital regquirgd on the basis of annanl operting plan gnd long-ierm stroegic plans. The funding requi remaies aee met
mastly thraugh memal accruals and some shor-term barrowings. The Company maniwrs the capisl sructuse an e basis of Net debt io equity ik and mifuarity
profile of the overlt debt portfobio of the Campany

Mote - 40: Inipaniement of Assets

In socordones with the Indisn Aczouming Stondord (IndAS-36)0n “Impairment of Ass=is" the Company has, during the year, corried out an exercise of identifying
the nszets thot mny love been impaired in respect of cash geasoating unit in accordance with the said fndian Accounting Sandard, Based an the exersise, no

impairrnenl loss i requined as a1 Manch 31, 2034
Mate - 41 Frndnseinl listroments

This nole wves ain averview of the significance of [nancial instrements for the Company ond provides additonal infarmation on balance sheed ilems thnt centain
financinl instruments. The sgmilicant pocounding policy i rstation o fineneial stuments i@ oontakned in Motz [(ERv)




iy Financial assets and Hahilities

The allowing tables presenis the carrying valie wnd fuir value of ench catepary af francinl assets mmd labilities g ot Marsh 31, 2025, March 31, 2094, March 31,

2% und April 01, 2022,

Asat 3031025 (¥ i Lakha)
Particilars Amartized Cost | FVTOCI FVTIL Toral tareying
and Fairvalue
Finmacinl Asseis
Inwestiments = E :
lrade recenvables 454 41 A% a3
Cash and cnsh equivalenis T8l T9.91
Cither honk balapces = =
Chber liranginl nsscis 1,779.80 1,779 80K
2.334.13 2,354,13
e —— -
Financial Lealviliry =
Hofrewings T43.348 Ta1 38
Trowle phynilss 242514 514
Oiher financinl liabilines 57.53 §7.53
As 0t 31013 2025 3_n|2-ﬂ-\.[l‘5 3.24d6.05
As ot 31.03,2024 T in Lakhis)
Particulirs Amortized Cont | FVTOCI FVTPL Toisl carrping
and fuir vilug
Financial Asseta®
Imvesiments - .
Tracle receteables |B5.15 - 185.1%
Cushnod caah edquivalents 500.81 = S0 Bl
Crtber hank: hobnnces P . J
Othesr Nnnncial nesels 23947 - 23947
1543 1L 543
Finnngiznl Ligkilioe®
Bortowiims 1,283,359 = I 28559
Tridle paynites T71L - THL
Other Gidancial liohilioes 4278 * 42,78
As sl 31032024 1. 405,48 140544
Asat 3.03,2023 [T im Liklis)
Particulars Amortized Cast FVTOC] EVTIL Tolnl enrrying
il fadr value
Financinl Assets®
Inwesime s E .
Trade reesd vables 3 H -
Crgh uncl cash sguivalents 1373 1375
Ciher bank balonces - . =
Onber Minuneinl assets ) |
2=1 Nl 13,79
Fimnoen | Linbiliay#
Barrowings 571.30 . E71.20
Trade pnyables - -
Cber finuncint liabilities 14 1 [4.1¢
As ot 31032023 SBE.30 SRS




g i (LML 22T (¥ in Lakhs}
Porticulars Antartized Cost FYTOC FVTPL Tatal carrying
amdl Inlr wiloe
Financiunl Assets®
Investmenis - -
Trade receivahles - -
Cagh and engh equivalents 132 132
Oitlser hank halnsces . -
Other finangial azssts 90,57 5T
91.89 - - 97189
Finnncinl Lishility*
Borrawings - -
Trade payables - .
Oilyer firancanl Jinbilities inT .07
As s (104, 2022 307 - 107

* The fr value of all sther finuneiel sssef and Liabality carmied of amortize cost 1s-equal 10 thewr earrping value ne-ai belance sheet dates

(b} Fair valse hicrarchy

The foliowing table provides an onafysiz of fnoncm] instruments that sre measured subsequent to mtzl recogrmmon o fur vilue, grouped mto Level | Level 3

a5 descnbed below

Quated prices in wn nctive murket (Lovel 1) This kevel of hiernrchy includes fnancinl asseds 1hot are mepsured by reference (o quated poices in octive markels
far dentiend nssets or linbilites, Company does not hald any assetinbility thot fall into.this cotegory.  This level of hierarely includes Compnay's invettment in

quoles equity slsntes

Valuntion techaigues with observable Inputs (Level 2): This beve] of hieraschy ingludes Mnancinl asesd and liabilnies, messured wsing inpuis other tinn queted
prices ineluded vithin Leved | thet ore observirble for the asset or Habilin, either derestly (e, a5 priges) of indirecily (12, dived Trom prces Company doss nat

heolel wny ezt Ftal s shnt full oo dhis cotegory

Valuaticn technigues with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3% This level of hierarchy mcludes linonean] gssets and labilites iexsuned using inpis thal
wre nod busest on observable market dnla (uncbservable inputs). Company does nos hobd ony assalinbility thod fall o this category.

Purdiculars

Levef -1

As at U1L04,2022

Ciwied equity instrunkenis

At 31052005 |As ar31,00.2024 | As e 31,03.2023

¢l Fimnneinl risk munngement

{13 The Compiny"s activities in ganeral gabjest 1o the fellowing neks:

Risk

Mature of risk snd instraniest effected

Risk manigement pelicies

Murket risk - inberest mte rigk

Inleresd pule Hsk o measured by wsing the cash fow
sensitivity for chamges imo voriahle imlerest rases. Any
mavement in the reference mites could have an unpee; an
the Company's cash Mows o well 23 costs. Compnny d
not hive nny borrowings ul variable. fntenesd mies Tlus,
these is no invderest rate risk for the Company

M

Credin rigk

Credit risk i3 the Ask of feancial huss anistag Trem counter-
party fadlure (o repoy or secvice debt acconding Lo ke
enntractnl lerms or obligations. Credin psk encompasses
both the direet resk of defwult ond the risk of doteriomtion
of ereditwonhiness as well as concemiration risks. The
mstrumvent (sl are subpce (o credip fisk invelves trade
receivnbies, investments, deposits onid loans, cosh and cash
eruivalenls g

The Company has o policy of dealing
only with eregit warihy counter parties.
Other risk manogement palicies nvelas
erédil npproval and monitering pracices,
counterparty credit policies and limis

Liquidity rsk

Liguidity risk refers io the risk thot the Compamy cannot
meel its fimencial obligntions. The abjestive of liguidily
ik manngement 15 oo meintmn suiticem lgudiy and
endure thai fumds are avalluble for use o8 per requinements

The Company monages its  liquidity
positiens through  intermnl cash Mo
geoiulils. Other risk manngemant paliics
imvalves  preparing and  menlanng
farecasts of  eash  [Mows, onsh
momagement polices,

il

S




i) Liguidicy Risk - Maturities of finsncinl Haldlities
Thie fubles belosw analyse the Company s financial labilitiey into rélevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maiirities
Thoe ampunts dreclosed in the wibile sre the contractun! undiseounted cash Nows. Balances due within 12 manihs equal their canrying balonees as the pmpact of

digcounting 5 not significant

Contractual maturities of financinl liabiliies Liss than | ¥ear 1-5Year More then § Yenr Total

i..h at 31032035

Short term Borrowings 202,91 - - )]

| Tmde gavaliles 244514 - - 2aali 14

|Cthar finoncial hadalitres 13,63 - - 1263

1,650.67 % . L,660.67 |

As ar 31033024

Shaort term borowings 53762 B - 357.62

Trade poyaklzs 7701 - . 711

L'Ith:rﬁnurhcigl_l_ig_hu]inu 42 T8 - - 41 7H
67751 - - 677,51

[ A5t 3140132023

[Shart term borrawinos 571.20 - - 57130

Trnde payublas 217.54 - T

Criher fivancind lighilites 141 E 14,10
613,24 | » - 324

(A it 01.04.2007

Sl terin barrowings TR - - T6 30

Trode pavaliles - - - -

Criber financind Habilites 3407 - - 307
7037 - - 1027

(i} Price Risk - Security price risk

Exgrosuee in eguaty - ML

2 W




FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: UFTHHDL20Z1PTCIRI633

Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indinn Rupees in Lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 42: Adoprion of Indian Accownting Standard (Ind AS)
- A Mandatory exceptions to reteospective application

The Company has applied the following exceptions to the retrospective application of Tnd AS as mandatorily
required under Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards™ in first vear, being FY 2023-24,

i} Estimutes

On assessment of estimales migle under the Previous GAATP financial statemeants, the Company hag concluded that
thers is no necessity o revise such estimates under Ind AS, as there 35 no obiective evidence of an error in those

estinales.

(i)
Classification and measuremeni ol financial asscis

The classification of financial assels w e measured ol amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
incame i made on the basis of Fcts and ¢ircumstances that existed an the date of transition w Ind AS.

(iii) Derceognition of Anancial assets and financial linhilitics
Derecognition requirement for Ind AS 109 has been applied prospectively

B Optional exemptions from retrospective application

Ind AS 10T “First time Adoption of Indian Aceounting Standerds™ permits Companies adopting Ind AS for the first
time to mke certain exemptions from the full retrospective application af Ind AS during the transition. The Company
hias accordingly on transition (o Ind AS avalled the following key exemplions;

(1) Property, plant and equipment:

The campany has elected to take the carmying value of its propery, plant & equipment and intangible assets a3 per
previous GAAP { | GAAP ) as its doeemed cost for Ind AS as at Lt April, 2022,

(iiy [rerccognition of previously recognized financial instruments
Mot Applicable

(it} Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Ml

Reconcilintion between Previous GAAP and Tnd AS

i Lguity Reconciliation
Particular As at 31032023 A ot 01042022
Equity as per Previous Cia AP (Hestated) 200.00 200000
Adld: Adjustment

Finuncial instruments (Note 1}
Dreterred Taxes (Mo 1) =

200.00 2000

Equiry as per Ind AS

i Comprehensive Ineome Reconcilintion
Particular April'22 - March'23

Met Profit as per Previous GAAP (.80}
Add: Adjustment

Fimancial mstruments (MNote 1)
Dreferred Taxes (Note ii) -

(0.50)

{1081

R u

Met praofit as per Ind AS
Olver Comprehensive lncome as per Ind AS
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS

B\




il Cash Mow reconcilintion

Amount ny per Effect of transition | Amount as per
Partigular Previous GAAP to Ind AS Ind A%
Met cash generated fromfused in) operating selivities 166.96 - 166,96
Net eash generated from/{used in) investing activities (213.69) - (B13.69)
Met cosh generated fromd(used ) financing activities 1.213.75 - 1.213.75
Net inereased{deerease) in cash and cash equivalents 567.02 - 507,02
Cash and cash equivalents uy at April 1 2370 - 2379
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2023 5981 - 39081

Motes to reconciliation of total equity and total comprehensive income:
{iy Financial instrumenis

(i} Under previous IGAAP, current investments were stated ot lower of cost and fir value, Under lnd AS (Ind AS
109 "Financial Instroments"), these financial assets have been classified a5 FVTPL on the dite of iransition and fair
vitlue chianges after the date of ransition has been recognized in profit and loss

(1) Under previous [GAAP, non-current investments were stated al cost. Under Ind AS (Ind AS 109" Financial
Instruments™), these fMnancial sssets have been classified as Fair Valve through Other Comprehensive Income
{FVTOCI} on the date of ransition and fair value changes afler the date of transition has been recognized in Other
Compreliensive Income

(i) Under previous 1GAAP, some financial asters are earried sl books valug. Under Ind AS {Ind AS 0% Flnancial
Instruments”™), these financial assets have been classilied as Amortized cost on the date of transition and sre earried at
amortized cost using EIR

(i) Dwferred tuxes
Deforred taxes includes defererd fay fmpact on financial instruments recognized as per Ind AS 109 "Financial
Instruments"

{iii} Oiher comprehensive Ineome

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised during the vear are included in the profit or loss for the
year, unless Ind AS requires or permits otherwise, ltems thal are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the
statement of profit ond loss and olher comprehensive income include re-metsurement gaing o lossed on defined
benefit plans, fair value changes on equity instrument recognized as FYTOC,

The concept of other comprehensive Income did not exist under the Previous GAAP

o\




FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CEN: LITI000L202 1 PTCIS261)

Motes (o fienncial stilemen s for the yenr embed March 31, 2025
(AN mowmwnts in Tdinn Rupees in Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

KOTES ON ACCOUNTS
43 Duselosures for leases under [nd AS 116 - “Leases™.
Mol Applicable
44 Foreign Currency Transaction
Mature of Transaction A al A at
31 Mareh, 31 Mareh,
2025 2024
Valua of imypart an CIF Basis { Row Moterinl and Stock i Trade) | 3280
Walie of tingort on CIF Basis {For odber Expense Ee. shipping, insunence und Capiiol
Grad i4.48
3]
45 Row nenlerin] consame)
Mature ol Transdction Adoan Al
31 Mareh, 31 Mareh.
2025 224
Iimported raw matanal R0, 34 i
S ol mpored mw matenal 18T (1%
Indigenows raw maler il ;545 16 204004
L¥e ol imported v mstenial B9 (5% 10
46 Corporate Svcial Responsibility (CSR)
Mol Applicable
47 Disclosure on significont rutios
Furticalurs Agat Asat % Change* Reason for
31 March, 31 March, change
225 024
Curienl Betiy 247 442 A% Dz l1[t Increase
L redilpes
Debt-Equity Ratia 012 00| smy | D imme
- s - i Capital
% . e fo Increass
Debt Service Coverage Rutio 143 Iz 335, in Fiancs Gt
e e Duie 1o inerense
Retuen on Equity Rutia 14 ao7 1y I Frafits
D 1o meremes
i P liddes
Tnwertany tirnover mitlo 2.53 34 - T comnmsERsara e
will opemting
Eize
Trmile Receivaldes furmover’ intio 2030 23.00 -1 38 M
5 e 1 inGTense
Trade payehles tmpyer mtio 4,66 T i1 in Trovs Bavnbles
- D 10 nerease
3 1,36 3T b
Met gapital fumover ratio 41 it perition sie
. 5 Dhse we increase
Met profit ratio 007 bos 45 14y Piraiis
Relum on Investment = %% HA
; - Due la increnss
¥ el
Reedurn e Capital empheyed 012 DS 157% i Profs

2




FRANK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITEDR
CIN: HE37TI00TL202 1 PTCI42653
v Mites 1o Gnneinl stutements for the year ended Mureh 31, 2025

Methodabogy:

| Current [atio = Current Asset ! Current Linkility

4. Debi-Equity Fratiai = Tofal Del ¢ (Total Dali + Equity)

3. Debi Servies Coverngs Ratio = ERITDA ¢ Finance Cost

<, Return on Equity Ratio = Profit Aflier Tax ¢ Tewl Equity

5. Inventory Turnover Ratio = Furchase ¢ Inentory

& Trade Recoivable Turnover Rutio = Revinae fom Opemtions £ Trade Receivilis
7. Trace Paynblz Tumaver Batio = Purchase / Trads Pavabile

& et Capisal Tumover Ratio = Revemee fram Opesations / (Currem Assst .« Current Linbility )
9. Met Profit Ratio = Puofll Afksr Tox £ Revenue from Opertions

U, Refurn on invessment = Mot inceme on investiment / Coet af Equdy Invesinies
Il Return o Copital Empleyed = Profir Afier tax / {Total Equity + Totl Debit)

A8 OMher Motes
(1) Inthe apiion af e Board of Divectors 2nd Managensent, all the assees ailer ihin, Property, Plont mmd Equipment, Titanpible assers
and non-clErrent divestments hive o vailue an alistion in the ardinary course of bapness which s at least el 1w M ameunt &t

which they me sinted

[} Fipures for tse previous venr feve been re-grauped/ remrranged! resinded wherever pecessary 1o make them comparable wath thase of
the cureent yen:

(i The Compary docs nar hive niy immsvable property whoss title doed 15 nat el in name of the COInPAy

() The company docs mol hove any Bznami progeny, whene any procecdieg bog besn initineed ar pernding sgnine ihe company for
helding any Benkiii propetiy,

(%) The compiry dods not lave bormewdngs from the bank or financial Insisions whers quarterly relunis of statement of current assets
tor e Fileed with sugh bonksfinansial imehiotan,

vt} The Company is mot declired ns willil defaubier by any bank-or finascinl instifution (as defined under the Companies Ast, 2013} ar
ronsariun Nerenf o atler kender in sceardance wiih he guidelines on willl defiuliers saued by the Reserve Bank of ldia

fvid} The cempany hss not done any imeasntions with gempanies struck off wnder section 248 of the compunies Aet 205 pr section 550 of
conipanies Azt 1936
[wilt]  The Compnny cozs per have sny chorgss or satisfesian widch isve o be reistered with ROC beyond 1)1 statinlory period

fix)  The Conpany fow complied with the number of layers for i holding i dowrstienn companics preseribed under clpuse (37} of
seetion 2 of the Companics Act, 2013 rest with the Companics {Restriction on mimiber of Luyers) Rules, 2017

() Company s not advanced ar loased or invested funds 1o any ethes person(s] ov entify(is), Including Feeign eribes (islermediones)
witlh e inderstanding that the Intermecdingy shall; (a} direcaly or indinesily lend or invest in other parssns or entitis wertified in gny
mannee whitsoever by or pn behallof the compamy {Uiliinmte Beneficin-izs) or (b) provide any gusrantee, security or the like ta or an

hehall of the Ulitimate Benefiurios.
ialh The Compmny ias net seeeived any fond from any persons) or enlity(is), inchuding foreign carities (Funding Party) with the

tsderstnding (whelbier recarded in writing or otherwise) that the Compeny shall: (1) direeily or Indirectly kend or invest in atler
persons of entities |denbified in any inanser whatsouver by or on belalf of the Funicliy Party {Llimale Boneficizries) o (B) provide

any guaranies, security or 1ba fike on belsd ol the Ultimate Beneffciaries

(xit)  The Campany does nab fnve sy transsction which (5 not recorded in the baoks of mesosnts tho has been surrendered o disclosed a5
income during the veor i the fix nssesmments under tha [nesine Tax Acl 1961 [soch os, soureh or aurvey of uny other relevant
pravisions of the Ineome Tox Act, 196]

(waily  The Company has wof traded or invested in Crypio corzency of Virs] Curreney during (he fnnneisl wear.

A% perowr regart af even dote For and o behalf of the Bronl of Directors

For AV A MBS & ASSOCIATES FRAMNK METALS RECYCLERS PRIVATE LIMITED

{Farmerly kmgwn ax A, K Varshirep & Co.)

Chartered Accountants . M’J
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